
Real Estate Agency 
Equitable Center 

530 Center St. NE, Suite 100 

Salem, Oregon  97301-2505 

Phone: (503) 378-4170 

Regulations Fax: (503) 373-7153 

Admin. Fax: (503) 378-2491 

www.oregon.gov/rea 

         

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Notice of Agenda 

OREGON REAL ESTATE BOARD 

Regular Meeting Agenda - Teleconference 

Oregon Real Estate Agency 

530 Center St. NE, Suite 100 

Salem, OR  97301 

 
NOTE: The board plans to meet from 10 a.m. until 1:30 p.m., including a “working lunch” period. 

I. BOARD BUSINESS-Chair Hunter 

A. Call to Order 

B. Chair Hunter comments/Roll Call 

C. Approval of the Agenda and Order of Business 

D. Approval of 2.3.20, regular meeting minutes 

E. Date of the Next Meeting: 6.1.20 in McMinnville, OR to begin at 10am and venue to be determined. 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT-Chair Hunter 

 This time is set aside for persons wishing to address the Board on matters not on the agenda.  Speakers will be limited to 

five minutes.   

 The Board Chair reserves the right to further limit or exclude repetitious or irrelevant presentations.  If written material is 

included, 12 copies of all information to be distributed to board members should be given to the Board Liaison prior to 

the meeting.  

 Action will not be taken at this meeting on citizen comments.  The Board, however, after hearing from interested 

citizens, may place items on a future agenda so proper notice may be given to all interested parties.  

  If no one wishes to comment, the next scheduled agenda item will be considered.       
   

III. REQUESTS FOR WAIVERS-Chair Hunter.  None. 
 

IV. PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER-Chair Hunter – None. 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS-Commissioner Strode.  2020 Governor’s State Employees Food Drive 
 

VI. REPORTS-Chair Hunter 

A. Commissioner Strode 

1. Advertising rule survey and workgroup 

2. COVID-19 actions 

3. Investigations 

4. OREN-J articles 

B. Agency division reports-Deputy Commissioner Higley  

1. Regulations and Administration, Deputy Commissioner Higley 

2. Land Development, Michael Hanifin 

3. Licensing and Education, Maddy Alvarado 
 

VII. ANNOUNCEMENTS-Chair Hunter.  Next board meeting:  6.1.20 in McMinnville, OR to begin at 10am and venue to be 

determined. 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT-Chair Hunter 
 

Interpreter services or auxiliary aids for persons with disabilities are available upon advance request. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

I.C. 



Real Estate Agency 
530 Center St. NE, Suite 100 

Salem, Oregon  97301-2505 

Phone: (503) 378-4170 

Regulations Fax: (503) 373-7153 

Admin. Fax: (503) 378-2491 

www.oregon.gov/rea 

           

 

Agenda Item No. 
I.D. 

 
OREGON REAL ESTATE BOARD 

 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

The Valley River Inn 

1000 Valley River Way 

Eugene, OR  97401 
 

Monday, February 3, 2020 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Lawnae Hunter, Chair 

    Alex MacLean, Vice-Chair 

Marie Due 
    Susan Glen 

Jose Gonzalez 

Dave Hamilton 
    Kim Heddinger 

    Pat Ihnat 
 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Debra Gisriel, excused 
 

OREA STAFF PRESENT:  Steve Strode, Commissioner 

    Anna Higley, Deputy Commissioner 

Selina Barnes, Regulations Manager 
Maddy Alvarado, Customer Service Manager 

     

 

GUESTS PRESENT:  Donna Charko, Berkshire Hathaway Home Services 
    
  

I. BOARD BUSINESS – Chair Hunter 

A. Call to Order.  Chair Hunter called the meeting to order at 10am. 
B. Chair Hunter comments/Roll Call.  Chair Hunter asked the board liaison to take roll call, board members/REA staff to introduce themselves, and 

explained the role/function of the board.  

C. Approval of the Agenda and Order of Business.  
 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS BY PAT IHNAT 

SECOND BY DAVE HAMILTON 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
 

D. Approval of 12.2.19 regular meeting minutes. 
 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE 12.2.19 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES BY KIM REDDINGER 

SECOND BY DAVE HAMILTON 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE (PAT IHNAT ABSTAINED AS SHE WAS NOT PRESENT AT THE 12.2.19 BOARD MEETING) 
 

E. Date of the Next Meeting: 4.6.20, in Florence, OR, to begin at 10am and venue to be determined. 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT – Chair Hunter.  None. 

 This time is set aside for persons wishing to address the Board on matters not on the agenda.  Speakers will be limited to five minutes.   

 The Board Chair reserves the right to further limit or exclude repetitious or irrelevant presentations.  If written material is included, 12 copies of all 

information to be distributed to board members should be given to the Board Liaison prior to the meeting.  

 Action will not be taken at this meeting on citizen comments.  The Board, however, after hearing from interested citizens, may place items on a future 

agenda so proper notice may be given to all interested parties.  

  If no one wishes to comment, the next scheduled agenda item will be considered.   
 

III. REQUEST FOR WAIVERS – Chair Hunter.  Waiver request log 

A. Christopher Ambrose, Mr. Ambrose explained that he had been practicing attorney with Ambrose Law Group and an active attorney for 
approximately 30 years.  He also stated that he was one of three owners of Total Real Estate Group LLC, which is a residential brokerage based 

out of Bend and his waiver request is based on his hands on experience as well as working very closely with the principal broker employed at 

Total Real Estate Group.  Mr. Ambrose reported his company closed approximately 70 transactions last year, bringing in 55 million in sales and 
that he had worked with and assisted in the selection of software.  Alex MacLean asked Mr. Ambrose how his becoming a principal broker would 

affect the current principal broker at the company.  Mr. Ambrose explained that he would continue to work closely with the principal broker but 

focus on managing the office and allocating duties while principal broker would continue to produce.   Dave Hamilton asked Mr. Ambrose is the 
current principal broker was a principal in the company and Mr. Ambrose stated current principal broker is not a principal in the company.    

Discussion:  Pat Ihnat, Dave Hamilton and Kim Heddinger all stated that they advocated the approval of the Mr. Ambrose’s waiver request based 

on his experience in both the legal and real estate industry.  Ms. Heddinger asked Mr. Ambrose if his intention was to continue to practice law 
and Mr. Ambrose affirmed.   

 

MOTION TO APPROVE CHRISTOPHER AMBROSE’S WAIVER REQUEST BY ALEX MACLEAN 

SECOND BY PAT IHNAT 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOU VOTE 

 

 
 



Oregon Real Estate Agency Board Meeting 

February 03, 2020 

Page 2           

 

 

 

IV. PETITION TO QUALIFY AS A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER -  Chair Hunter -  CEP Log 

A. Bernard Black, B.C.E., will appear in person.  Mr. Black explained he had over 35 years of experience in the pest management field, a board 

certified entomologist, provided education on pest control to Oregon Real Estate Inspection Association, and wishes to offer a course to real 
estate agents familiarizing them with pest control related to sale of homes.  Mr. Black will offer courses covering the following topics:  Property 

management, real estate consumer protection, commercial real estate, and risk management, which are all considered acceptable course topics. 

 

MOTION TO APPROVE BERNARD BLACK’S PETITION TO QUALIFY A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER BY DAVE HAMILTON 

SECOND BY JOSE GONZALEZ 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE 
 

V. BOARD ADVICE/ACTION – Commissioner Strode.  

A. 2020 Governor’s State Employee Food Drive.  Commissioner Strode provided a brief history of implementation of the food drive and encouraged 

board members to contribute. 
B. CEP board checklist and revised CEP petition.  Board consensus was to implement the CEP board checklist and revised CEP petition. 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS - Commissioner Strode.  None. 
 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS  -  ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS SUMMARY  -  Chair Hunter 
 

VIII. REPORTS – Chair Hunter 

A. Commissioner Strode 

1. PSI Broker and Principal Broker Exam Review Work Group.  Commissioner Strode summarized the workgroup meetings held on 

1.6-8.20 and indicated the workgroup completed the review. 

2. 2019 Oregon Real Estate Agency Report to the Oregon Legislature:  SB 688 – Temporary Authorizations for Military Spouses & 
Partners to Practice Real Estate.  Commissioner Strode summarized SB 688 

Commissioner Strode provided an update on HB 4003: 

 Authorizes Housing and Community Services Department to provide grants and technical assistance to organizations increasing homeownership program        

access to persons of color.  Authorizes expending Home Ownership Assistance Account funds for those purposes.  Makes funds available to federally 

recognized Indian tribes. Amends tax credit provisions for donations supporting individual development accounts.  Makes effective for tax years beginning 
on or after January 1, 2021.  Requires Department of Consumer and business Services to require implicit bias training for mortgage loan originators.  

Requires Real Estate Commissioner to require implicit bias component to real estate licensing exam and continuing education credits by January 1, 2021. 

Establishes Joint Task Force on Addressing Racial Disparities in Home Ownership.  Requires task force to report to interim committee of Legislative 
Assembly on or before December 1, 2020.  Sunsets task force on February 1, 2021.  Appropriates moneys to Housing and Community Services Department 

and Legislative Policy and Research Committee to administer Act.  Takes effect on 91st day following adjournment sine dine. 

B. Agency Division Reports  -  Deputy Commissioner Anna Higley 

1. Regulations, Selina Barnes. Ms. Barnes reviewed the statistics/information provided in the written division report and explained the 

process involved with investigating complaints.  She also reported that the current recruitment for a Financial Investigator is in 

process and summarized the Administrative Actions Summary. 
2. Administration and Land Development, Deputy Commissioner Higley reviewed the statistics/information provided in the written 

Land Development division report and reported that the administrative specialist for Land Development division resigned recently 

and staff member from Licensing Division will fill in until position is filled permanently.  She also reviewed the 
statistics/information provided in the written Administrative Services division report, specifically regarding the separation of  the 

Licensing and Education from Administrative Services. Ms. Higley explained that she would be initiating a recruitment for an 

Administrative Services Manager in the near future. 
3. Licensing and Education, Madeline Alvarado.  Ms.Alvarado reviewed the statistics/information provided in the written division 

report as well as division staff update.  She also announced that Danette Rozell will be retiring from the Agency effective 

March 31, 2020. 
 

 

IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS – Chair Hunter.  Next board meeting:  4.6.20 in Florence, OR, to begin at 10am and location to be determined.   
 

X. ADJOURNMENT  
 

Respectfully submitted,      Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
_______________________________________________________  _____________________________________________________ 

STEVE STRODE, COMMISSIONER     LAWNAE HUNTER, BOARD CHAIR 



Board Articles 
 

4/2012  Byron Hendricks, Brokers and Principal Brokers – What’s required for your files? 

6/2012  Coni Rathbone, Are TIC Workouts Working Out 

9/2012 Diana Emami, What I Expect from a Licensed Real Estate Agent or a Property Manager 

10/2014 Byron Hendricks, Give Your Input on the 3-Hour Law and Rule Required Course 

12/2014 Marcia Edwards, Licensees Must Be Vigilant and Cognizant of Responsibilities 

2/2015  Lee Dunn, The Real Estate Industry Should Reevaluate Current Practices 

4/2015 Joann Hansen, Resources to Reduce Risk Management and Deliver to Clients a Quality 

Real Estate Transaction 

6/2015 Chris Hermanski, 10 Things that Property Managers (and Brokers) Must Do to Prosper 

8/2015 Bob LeFeber, Millennials – Is the Real Estate Industry Ready? 

12/2015 Pat Ihnat – What Real Estate Brokers Need to Know About the New TRID Closing 

Disclosure Requirements 

8/2016 Dave Koch, Long-Term Investment 

12/2016 Dave Koch, Principal Broker: To Be or Not to Be? 

2/2017 Marcia Edwards, Your Personal Code of Ethics 

4/2017 Coni Rathbone, Obstacles to Closing Your Real Estate Transaction 

9/2017 Pat Ihnat, FIRTA: An Overview for Residential Brokers 

2/2018 Marcia Edwards, Reflections on My Tenure on the Real Estate Board 

4/2018 Dave Koch, Air Marketing (Note: This was about compliance with laws when using 

drones for marketing.) 

6/2018 Coni Rathbone, Negotiation Basics: How to Get Started 

10/2018 Pat Ihnat, Think Before You Click: Real Estate Wire Transfer Fraud Crimes Are on the Rise 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  

VI.A.4 



  1 

REAL ESTATE BOARD 
REGULATION DIVISION REPORT 

April 6, 2020 
 

Regulation Division Manager:  Vacant  
Compliance Specialists 3 (Compliance Coordinator):  Deanna Hewitt, Rob Pierce, Meghan 
Lewis (WOC) 
Financial Investigators (Investigator-Auditor):  Jeremy Brooks, Aaron Grimes,  

Liz Hayes (WOC), Meghan Lewis, Lisa Montellano, Cidia Nañez, Lindsey Nunes, John 
Moore 

Compliance Specialist 2:  Carolyn Kalb 
Operations and Policy Analyst:  Denise Lewis (WOC)  
 
 
 
Division Overview 
The Regulation Division receives complaints and determines validity and assignment for 
investigation.  Investigators gather facts (from interviews and documents), prepare a detailed 
written report and submit to the Manager for review.  The Manager determines whether the 
evidence supports charging a person with a violation of Agency statutes or administrative rules, 
as well the appropriate resolution.  The Manager conducts settlement conferences to resolve 
cases without a contested case hearing.  If a hearing is requested, the Investigator works with 
the Assistant Attorney General in preparing for and presenting the case at hearing. 
 
Personnel 
Selina Barnes has resigned from her position as the Regulation Division Manager. This position 
is currently vacant. Deputy Commissioner Higley is acting as the direct supervisor to Regulation 
Division staff. Commissioner Strode is granting approval for all cases recommended for 
administrative action. Meghan Lewis has been put in a work out of class as a Compliance 
Specialist 3 joining Deanna Hewitt and Rob Pierce in the lead team. This team is exclusively 
dedicated to conducting Administrative Reviews.  
 
John Moore was offered and accepted the Financial Investigator 1 position. His start date is 
pending due to the COVID19 pandemic.  
 
Workload and Activity Indicators 
The Pending Assignment status was retired in order to eliminate unintended delays in 
assignment and investigation. All cases initiated are directly assigned to the investigator rather 
being queued. Prior to eliminating this status, investigators had an average of 6 cases at a time. 
Now investigators have around 13 cases at a time.  
 

Average # in this      
Status at the time     

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
Current 
3/27/20 

Complaint 40 44 33 25 20 26  21 

Pending Assignment 3 4 24 16 26 39 34 0 

Investigation 47 52 49 50 38 48 55 94 

(# of Investigators) 6 7 7 7 7* 6-7** 7 7 

Admin Review 27 33 28 40 35 61 50 30 
   * One investigator on medical leave. 

   ** One investigator on medical leave, then retired.  Late 2019 vacancy was filled. 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  

VI. B.1 



ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS 
Reported 

  1/23/2020 through  
 
 

REVOCATIONS 
 
 
 
SUSPENSIONS 
 
 
 
REPRIMANDS 
Paris, Claire Diane (Portland), Principal Broker, 200309285, Stipulated Order dated February 5, 2020, 
issuing a reprimand 
 
Shedden, Barbara Jean (Keizer), Principal Broker, 2014109056, Stipulated Order dated March 12, 
2020. 
 
 
CIVIL PENALTIES 
 
Expired — Late Renewal civil penalties are computed using each 30-day period as a single offense.  
The civil penalty for the first 30-day period can range from $100-$500, with each subsequent 30-day 
period ranging from $500-$1,000.  ORS 696.990 
 
 
Unlicensed: 
Bauske, Deborah (Seaside), Unlicensed, Stipulated Order dated March 2, 2020, issuing a $6,600.00 
civil penalty. 
 
Bonanno, Paul (Encinitas, CA), Unlicensed, Stipulated Order dated March 12, 2020, issuing a 
$250.00 civil penalty. 
 
APPELLATE JUDGEMENT 
Berrey, Dan Lee, Effective Date: February 11, 2020, Affirmed 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 















































































































































































   

REAL ESTATE BOARD 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIVISION REPORT 

April 6, 2020 

 

Administrative Services Manager:  Vacant 

Communications Coordinator: Mesheal Heyman 

Accountant: Caty Karayel. 

Operations & Policy Analyst: Denise Lewis  

Systems Administrator: Tiffani Miller 

Program Analyst: Rus Putintsev 

 

Section Overview 

The Administrative Services Division acts as business support for the Agency overall. This division 

manages budget preparation, accounting, purchasing and contracting, inventory control, facilities, 

payroll, human resources, special projects, information technology (IT) and communications. 
 

Budget Update 

Financials: The Legislative Adopted Budget for the 2019-2021 biennium is $8.5 million. The Agency 

cash balance as of February 29th is $3.42 million. The Agency had filed a notice of intent with the 

Legislative Fiscal Office and Chief Financial Office to request legislative approval in the 2020 session 

for a limitation increase of $899,415 to account for revenue related to examination services. The revenue 

would have been a technical pass-through and had a net zero effect on the Agency’s revenue though the 

2020 legislative session did not proceed with the intended technical adjustment bill. Changes to 

expenditure limitation have not been made though it may be proposed in the next session or technical 

adjustment opportunity with the legislature. 

 

Biennium to date, the Agency has averaged a monthly surplus of just over $100,000. This calendar year, 

2020, started off very strong with new applications up by 10% as compared 2018 to 2019. Renewal rates 

also remained high early in the year with 1% fewer licensees renewing late or letting their license lapse 

when contrasted to 2019.  

 

However COVID 19 has put Oregon in a state of emergency. The economic consequences have the 

potential to be severe. The outcome to the real estate industry is yet to be determined but we do know 

that real estate is a cornerstone in our economy and any long lasting, far reaching effects are likely to 

impact this industry. While the current vantage point is murky, there are things we do know today, 

including: new applicants are not currently able to complete the application process as fingerprinting and 

examination services are closed, in-migration to Oregon from other states has halted for the time being, 

the practice of residential Real Estate is limited. The question today is how long will this last? From the 

lessons learned of the 2008 financial crisis and the resultant recession, in the very near term we do not 

expect substantial changes to renewal revenue. Though new applications are likely to slow given the 

obstacles to testing and fingerprint.  

 

Organizational Change & Staffing 

The Agency had anticipated posting a recruitment for the Administrative Services Division statewide in 

February and hiring in March but has had to postpone this engagement due to priorities in responding to 

the COVID19 continuity efforts. The Agency office is now closed to the public. Two staff remain 

working on site to maintain processes which must be done at the office. This includes IT systems 

support and reception duties (mail handling, scanning).  

 

All remaining staff have been issued a laptop and are working remotely using electronic processes to 

support their work. Agency management is monitoring work product, meeting with staff by phone 

regularly and continuing service to the public by phone and email. 

 



   

 



   

 

 

 

 

Report to the Real Estate Board 

Land Development Division  
6 April 2020  

 

 

 

Division Manager:   Michael Hanifin 

 

Section Overview: 

The Land Development Division reviews and approves filings related to condominiums, 

timeshares, subdivisions, manufactured home subdivisions, and membership campgrounds. The 

section reviews and approves the foundational documents creating these types of properties, as 

well as later amendments to those documents, to verify compliance with statutory requirements. 

We also issue the Disclosure Statement (sometimes referred to as a Public Report) required for 

sales of these interests to Oregonians. The Disclosure Statement summarizes key information 

about the condominium for the consumer, somewhat like the owner’s manual for a car. 

 

Workload and Activity Indicators 

 

 

 

 

Filings thru end of February have been in line with what was seen in 2018/2019. Current filings 

do not reflect any impact from the current pandemic, and I suspect those effects won’t be seen 

until mid-year, as developers are likely to continue converting finished projects into saleable 

condominiums. Some county surveyor’s offices have closed and my understanding is that “field 

checks” are not being conducted at this time (part of the county plat review process) so I’m not 

sure when or how the counties will work to complete review of new projects just coming into the 

pipeline. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI.B.2 



   

 

Current Activity: 

 

Permanent Rulemaking: The agency has filed notice of permanent rulemaking to implement HB 

3030, as amended by SB 688 (2019 Regular Session), which created a right for certain persons to 

apply for a temporary authorization to practice a profession they are duly licensed for in another 

state. After review and comment by the advisory committee the decision was made to go forward 

with filing the permanent rulemaking using the text of the temporary rule. A copy of the notice 

of permanent rulemaking filing is attached. 

 

There will be a telephonic hearing on this rulemaking, which is scheduled for 10AM to 11AM on 

April 16th. The deadline for comment on the rulemaking is April 21st, 3PM. The effective date of 

the permanent rule will be determined after close of the comment period, but will be before the 

end of June (to ensure there is no gap between the temporary and permanent rules).  

 

Transition to Online Filing Process: We had been working on taking the division online for some 

time, but in response to the pandemic those plans were accelerated and the division has now 

shifted to an online filing process for condominiums. This transition significantly simplifies 

work-from-home, which is required where possible under the Governor’s current guidance, and 

also minimizes deliveries into the office, which helps protect front-office staff from exposure. 

 



NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULEMAKING 
 
CHAPTER 863 
REAL ESTATE AGENCY 
 
FILING CAPTION: Rules for military spouse temporary authorizations as real estate brokers, 
principal brokers, or property managers. 
 
LAST DAY AND TIME TO OFFER COMMENT TO AGENCY: 04/21/2020  3:00 PM 
 
HEARING(S): 
 
DATE: 04/16/2020 
TIME: 10:00 AM - 11:00 AM 
OFFICER: Michael Hanifin 
ADDRESS: Real Estate Agency 
Equitable Center, suite 100 
530 Center St NE 
Salem, OR 97301-2505 
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:  
Conference Room 

  

 
NEED FOR THE RULE(S): 
HB 3030, as amended by SB 688 (2019 Regular Session), create a right for certain persons to apply for 
a temporary authorization to practice a profession they are duly licensed for in another state. These 
rules provide the application process and structure for such applications. 
 
DOCUMENTS RELIED UPON, AND WHERE THEY ARE AVAILABLE: 
HB 3030, SB 688 (2019 Regular Session) Chapter 142, Chapter 626 (2019 Laws). The document are 
available on the agency's website, at: https://www.oregon.gov/REA/Pages/laws_rules.aspx and a paper 
copy is available upon request. 
 
FISCAL AND ECONOMIC IMPACT: 
These new rules can be implemented using existing resources. 
 
COST OF COMPLIANCE: 
(1) Identify any state agencies, units of local government, and members of the public likely to be 
economically affected by the rule(s). (2) Effect on Small Businesses: (a) Estimate the number and type 
of small businesses subject to the rule(s); (b) Describe the expected reporting, recordkeeping and 
administrative activities and cost required to comply with the rule(s); (c) Estimate the cost of 
professional services, equipment supplies, labor and increased administration required to comply with 
the rule(s). 
There is no anticipated impact on either agencies or small business.  
 
DESCRIBE HOW SMALL BUSINESSES WERE INVOLVED IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
THESE RULE(S): 



Small business owners and licensees were included within the advisory committee that provided input 
on the rules and advised on impact on small business. 
 
WAS AN ADMINISTRATIVE RULE ADVISORY COMMITTEE CONSULTED?  YES 
 
CONTACT: 
Michael Hanifin 
503-378-4632 
michael.b.hanifin@oregon.gov 
Real Estate Agency 
530 Center St NE 
Salem,OR 97301 
 
RULES PROPOSED: 
863-014-0054, 863-024-0054 
 
ADOPT: 863-014-0054 
RULE TITLE: Temporary Authorization for Armed Forces Spouses or Domestic Partners 
RULE SUMMARY: Provides process to obtain temporary authorization to conduct professional real 
estate activity as a real estate broker or principal broker. 
RULE TEXT: 
 
(1) Upon completion of the requirements in (3) through (5) of this rule, a spouse or domestic partner of 
an active-duty member of the United States Armed Forces who is stationed in this state may obtain a 
temporary authorization to conduct professional real estate activity as a real estate broker or principal 
broker. Such authorization is valid until the earliest of the following: 
 
(a) Two years from the date of issuance; 
 
(b) The date the applicant’s spouse or domestic partner completes their term of active duty service in 
in this state; or 
 
(c) The date the applicant’s license issued by another state expires. 
 
(2) Upon submission of the application for authorization, the applicant must hold an active real estate 
license of the same real estate license category in another U.S. state. The applicant must be in good 
standing in the state or states in which the applicant is currently licensed. 
 
(3) To apply for temporary authorization, the applicant must: 
 
(a) Complete an application and pay the related fee as provided in OAR 863-014-0010(1). 
 
(b) Submit to a background check and fingerprint as provided in OAR 863-014-0015. 
 
(c) Furnish certification of active license history issued by the state or states where licensed as required 
in (2) of this rule. 



 
(d) Pay the required fee to the examination provider and pass the state portion of the real estate broker 
or principal broker license examination to demonstrate competency. 
 
(4) An applicant seeking temporary authorization to conduct professional real estate activity as a real 
estate broker must be associated with a principal broker as provided in OAR 863-014-0035(3). 
 
(5) An applicant seeking temporary authorization to conduct professional real estate activity as a 
principal real estate broker must either: 
 
(a) Register a business name using an online application through the Agency’s website as provided in 
OAR 863-014-0095; or 
 
(b) Have an active principal broker transfer the applicant to an active registered business name under 
OAR 863-014-0063 using an online application available through the Agency’s website. 
 
(6) The temporary authorization to conduct professional real estate activity as a real estate broker or 
principal broker may not be renewed on expiration. Previous holders of a temporary authorization 
must reapply and fulfill the requirements of ORS 696.022 and OAR 863-014-0035 or 863-014-0040 in 
order to conduct professional real estate activity in this state. 
 
STATUTORY/OTHER AUTHORITY: HB 3030, SB 688 (2019 Laws) 
STATUTES/OTHER IMPLEMENTED: HB 3030, SB 688 (2019 Laws) 



ADOPT: 863-024-0054 
RULE TITLE: Temporary Authorization for Armed Forces Spouses or Domestic Partners 
RULE SUMMARY: Provides process to obtain temporary authorization to engage in management of 
rental real estate as a property manager. 
RULE TEXT: 
 
(1) Upon completion of the requirements of (3) and (4) of this rule, a spouse or domestic partner of an 
active-duty member of the United States Armed Forces who is stationed in this state may obtain a 
temporary authorization to engage in the management of rental real estate as a real estate property 
manager. Such authorization is valid until the earliest of the following: 
 
(a) Two years from the date of issuance; 
 
(b) The date the applicant’s spouse or domestic partner completes their term of active duty service in 
in this state; or 
 
(c) The date the applicant’s license issued by another state expires. 
 
(2) Upon submission of the application for authorization, the applicant must hold an active property 
manager license in another U.S. state. The applicant must be in good standing in the state or states in 
which the applicant is currently licensed. 
 
(3) To apply for temporary authorization, the applicant must: 
 
(a) Complete an application and pay the related fee as provided in OAR 863-024-0010(1). 
 
(b) Submit to a background check and fingerprint as provided in OAR 863-024-0015. 
 
(c) Furnish certification of active license history issued by the state or states where licensed as required 
in (2) of this rule. 
 
(d) Pay the required fee to the examination provider and pass the property manager examination to 
demonstrate competency. 
 
(4) An applicant seeking temporary authorization to engage in the management of rental real estate as 
a real estate property manager must either: 
 
(a) Register a business name using an online application through the Agency’s website as provided In 
OAR 863-024-0095; or  
 
(b) Have an active principal broker or licensed property manager transfer the applicant to an active 
registered business name under OAR 863-024-0063 using an online application available through the 
Agency’s website. 
 
(5) The temporary authorization to engage in the management of rental real estate as a real estate 
property manager may not be renewed on expiration. Previous holders of a temporary authorization 



must reapply and fulfill the requirements of ORS 696.022 and OAR 863-024-0045 in order to engage 
in the management of rental real estate in this state. 
 
STATUTORY/OTHER AUTHORITY: HB 3030, SB 688 (2019 Laws) 
STATUTES/OTHER IMPLEMENTED: HB 3030, SB 688 (2019 Laws) 



   

 

REAL ESTATE BOARD 

EDUCATION & LICENSING DIVISION REPORT 

April 

 

Education & Licensing Manager: Madeline Alvarado 

Compliance Specialist: Tami Schemmel 

Compliance Specialist: Danette Rozell  

Compliance Specialist: Jenifer Wetherbee  

Administrative Specialist: Elizabeth Hardwick 

Administrative Specialist: Rick Marsland 

Administrative Specialist: Nenah Darville 

 

Section Overview 

The Education and Licensing Division acts as support to the Agency as well as the first point of contact 

for the public and services the business functions of the Agency overall.  This division manages 

reception, licensing services, compliance reviews, client trust account reviews and education. 

 

 

Education 

Due to COVID-19 the Agency has allowed providers that typically provide live classroom instruction to 

provide classes via webinar. 

 

PSI testing centers are currently closed and set to reopen on April 13th due to the pandemic. 

 

Client Trust Account Reviews 

Responses due on 3/28/2020. As of 3/23/2020 55% have the review has provided their responses. Based 

on these responses received, 22% have closed without any issues found, 15% have closed with 

Educational Letters of Advice, and 66% are still under review. 

 

Licensing 

Licensing services include assisting real estate brokers, principal brokers, property managers and escrow 

agencies as they manage their licenses using eLicense, assisting customers as they process registered 

business names and branch office registrations in eLicense, registering membership campground 

contract brokers, completing license applicant criminal background check investigations, processing 

escrow licensing and security/bonding files, maintaining all licensing history records, electronic 

processing of fees, and providing general reception services.  

 

 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI.B.3. 



   

 

RBN Renewal 

  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Eligible to Renew 420 343             

Failed to Renew 14 11           

% Renewed  97% 97%                
 

 

 

Licensing Statistics 

Total Licensee Counts by Month: 

Individuals (Persons) Jan-20 Feb-20 

    

Broker – Total 16,563 16,480 

   Active 14,657 14,571 

   Inactive 1,906 1,909 

    

Principal Broker - Total 6,457 6,427 

   Active 6,060 6,028 

   Inactive 397 399 

    

ALL BROKERS Total 23,020 22,907 

   Active 20,717 20,599 

   Inactive 2,303 2,308 

    

Property Manager - Total 947 939 

   Active 816    814 

   Inactive 131 125 

    

MCC Salesperson 20 18 

MCC Broker 1      1 

    

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS 23,988 23,865 

   Active 21,554 21,432 

   Inactive 2,434 2,433 

    

Facilities (Companies)   

REMO 5 5 

Registered Business Name 

(RBN) 3,873 3,850 

Registered Branch Office 

(RBO) 756 757 

Escrow Organization 65 65 

Escrow Branch  145 145 

PBLN NA NA 

PMLN NA NA 

CEP 304 305 

MCC Operator      25 25 

TOTAL FACILITIES 5,173 5,152 

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS & 

FACILITIES 29,161 29,017 

 

 

 

New Licenses by Month: 

Individuals (Persons) Jan-20 Feb-20 

Broker    187 177 

Principal Broker     17 16 

TOTAL BROKERS 204 193 

Property Manager 16 11 

MCC Salesperson 0 2 

MCC Broker 0 0 

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS 220 206 

Facilities (Companies)   

Continuing Education 

Provider (CEP) 3 1 

REMO 0 0 

Registered Business Name 42 32 

Registered Branch Office  15 6 

Escrow Organization 1 0 

Escrow Branch  0 0 

MCC Operator 0 0 

TOTAL FACILITIES 58 38 

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS 

& FACILITIES     278 244 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
   



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exam Statistics 
 

February 2020 

ALL LICENSING EXAMS                

Total  

 

          

   Broker 372           

   Property Manager   40           

   Principal Broker   21      

   Reactivation    6      

 

 

 

 

 

Pass Rates 

First Time Pass Rate 

Percentage 

2016  2017  2018   2019  2020 

  

Broker State 64             61          58          57         54       

Broker National 74           73          72          70         71    

Principal Broker State  59           58          59          51         71      

Principal Broker National 75           76          77          69         72      

Property Manager 64           69             67          64         50     

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

 
Oregon Real Estate Agency               

Education & Licensing Division                
Licensee Application & Renewal 
2020 Data               

New Applications 

   Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

Brokers 359 292           651 

Principal Brokers 37 44           81 

Property Managers 21 23           44 

Total 417 359           776 

               

               

Renewal Activity 

Brokers Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

On Time Active 480 487              967 

  Inactive 52 55           107 

Late Active 45 32           77 

  Inactive 11 11           22 

Lapse   85 92           177 

Total 673 677           1350 

               

Principal Brokers Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

On Time Active 234 238           472 

  Inactive 9 17               26 

Late Active 13 7               20 

  Inactive 0 2           2 

Lapse   23 20           43 

Total 279 284           563 

 
 
 
 
               



   

 
Education & Licensing Division  
Licensee Application & Renewal 
2020 Data 

 

Property Managers Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

On Time Active 29 26           55 

  Inactive       2 4           6 

Late Active       2 0           2 

  Inactive 1 0           1 

Lapse   8 10           18 

Total 42 40           82 

               

               

Grand Total (Brokers, Principal Brokers, Property Managers) 

   Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

Total Eligible to Renew  994 1001           1995 

On Time Active 743 751           1494 

  Inactive 63 76           139 

Late Active 60 39           99 

  Inactive 12 13           25 

Total Renewed  878 879           1757 

Lapse  116 122              238 

               

% On Time  

      
81.1 % 82.6% % % % % % % % % % % 81.9% 

% Late  7.2% 5.2% % % % % % % % % % % 6.2% 

% Failed to Renew(Lapsed)  11.7% 12.2% % % % % % % % % % % 11.9% 

Total  100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 



   

Oregon Real Estate Agency               

Education & Licensing Division                
Licensee Application & Renewal 
2019 Data               

New Applications 

  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

Brokers 328 259 300 280 287 278 233 245 227 260 250 238 3185 

Principal Brokers 47 32 39 25 32 24 36 14     23 32 38 26 368 

Property Managers 17 18 24 39 25 22 20 21     19 24 22 19 270 

Total 392 309 363 344 344 324 289 280 269 316 310 283 3823 

               

               

Renewed & Lapsed Licenses 

Brokers Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

On Time Active 415 398 473 426 485 521 534 503 550 497 439 469 5710 

 Inactive 43 41 35 33 38 33 49 37     46 40 36 37 468 

Late Active 42 25 37 47 67 40 52 32 50 35 35 52 514 

 Inactive 7 14       9 6 13 7 7 11 17 10 9 7 117 

Lapse  79    103 102 96 102 87 99 116 103 105 78 99 1169 

Total 586 581 656 608 705 688 741 699 766 687 597 664 7978 

               

Principal Brokers Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

On Time Active 211 188 208 215 205 243 250 258 243 215 203 233 2672 

 Inactive 18 9 11 5 8 8 12 8 10 13 6 13 121 

Late Active 12 7 8 15 12 11 12 12 10 11 15 14 139 

 Inactive 1 2 1       4 3 1 4 2 3 4 1 4 30 

Lapse  29 28 28 20 33 24 27 23 24 21 23 20 300 

Total 271 234 256 259 261 287 305 303 290 264 248 284 3262 

 
               



   

 
 
 
 

Education & Licensing Division 
Licensee Application & Renewal 
2019 Data 

Property Managers Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

On Time Active 40 28 24 22 35 32 24 32 30 27 25 24 343 

 Inactive 6 3 3 5 2 2 3 3 1 4 0 3 35 

Late Active 4 2 1       1 3 0 1       1 2 1 1 3 20 

 Inactive 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 4 

Lapse  5 8 15 8 7 10 6 8 9 8 8 6 98 

Total 56 41 43 36 47 44 34     44 44 40 34 37 500 

               

               

Grand Total (Brokers, Principal Brokers, Property Managers) 

  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

Total Eligible to Renew  913 856 955 903 1013 1019 1080 1046 1100 991 879 985 11740 

On Time Active 666 614 705 663 725 796    808 793 823 739 667 726 8725 

 Inactive 67 53     49 43 48 43 64     48 57 57 42 53 624 

Late Active 58 34     46 63 82 51 65     45 62 47 51 69 673 

 Inactive 9 16     10 10 16 8 11     13 22 14     10 12 151 

Total Renewed  800 717 810 779 871 898 948 899 964 857 770 860 10173 

Lapse  113 139 145 124 142 121 132 147 136 134 109 125 1567 

               

% On Time  80.3% 77.9% 79.0% 78.2% 76.3% 82.3% 80.7% 80.4% 80.0% 80.3% 80.7% 79.1% 79.6% 

% Late  7.3% 5.8% 5.9% 8.1% 9.7% 5.8% 7.0% 5.5% 7.6% 6.2% 6.9% 8.2% 7.0% 

% Lapsed 
(failed to renew in grace period)  12.4% 16.2% 15.2% 13.7% 14.0% 11.9% 12.2% 14.1% 12.4% 13.5% 12.4% 12.7% 13.3% 

Total  100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

 



   

 
 
 
Oregon Real Estate Agency             

Education & Licensing Division             

Phone Counts              

              

(minutes: seconds) Jan – 20 Feb – 20 Mar – 20 Apr – 20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov--20 Dec-20 
2020 

Average 

Call Count 2117 1834         
 

 1975.5 

Average Wait Time :25 :21         
 

 :23 

Maximum Wait Time 0:11:05 0:09:30         
 

 0:10:17 

 
 

(minutes: seconds) Jan – 19 Feb – 19 Mar – 19 Apr – 19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov--19 Dec-19 
2019 

Average 

Call Count 2251 1748 1917 2138 2062 1738 1882 1685 1882 2012 1606 1637 1880 

Average Wait Time :20 :21 :29 :23 :24 :33 :30 :27 :26 :16 :25 :20 :24.5 

Maximum Wait Time 16:06 9:32 21:21 14:03 15:58 13:20 11:15 12:00 13:59 10:15 5:51 8:21 12:40 

 
 

(minutes: seconds) Jan – 18 Feb – 18 Mar – 18 Apr – 18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov--18 Dec-18 
2018 

Average 

Call Count 2317 2006 2263 2063 2113 2084 1837 2049 1824 2153 1828 1738 2024 

Average Wait Time :22 :15 :17 :16 :16 :27 :21 :19 :21 :23 :17 :25 :20 

Maximum Wait Time 5:32 3:23 8:58 7:05 13:27 12:18 14:40 12:53 10:26 13:22 7:41 10:07 8:29 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 




